




 
 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
 

OF 
 

HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 

September 23, 2019 

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority 
(the “Authority”) convened in regular session, open to the public, at 218 Joyce Street, Houston, 
Texas, 77009, on the 23rd day of September 2019, and the roll was called of the duly constituted 
officers and members of the Board, to-wit: 

   Edward Reyes  Chair/Assistant Secretary  
   Lloyd Burke   Vice Chair/Investment Officer  
   Sylvia Cavazos Secretary  
   Richard Cantu  Assistant Secretary 
   Fernando Zamarripa Assistant Secretary 
   Mario Castillo  Director 
 
All member of the Board of Directors were present except Director Cantu, thus constituting a 
quorum. 

Also present were: Clark Lord and Tiffany Ehmke of Bracewell LLP; Breland Coleman  
of Bentley, Bratcher & Associates, P.C. the Bookkeeper (the “Bookkeeper”); Ralph DeLeon of 
Tifworks; Tim Applewhite of McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot PLLC; and Joel Alba with the 
City of Houston (the “City”). Members of the public were present at the meeting and are 
referenced on the attached Exhibit “A”.  

Whereupon, the meeting was called to order. A copy of the notice of the meeting is 
attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 

DETERMINE QUORUM; CALL TO ORDER 

Director Reyes noted that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 No comments were given. 
 
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
 The Board considered approval of the minutes of June 10, 2019.  Following discussion, 
upon a motion made by Director Cavazos and seconded by Director Castillo, the Board voted 
unanimously to approve the minutes of June 10, 2019. 
 
 



 

 2 

APPROVAL OF AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019 
 
 Mr. Applewhite reviewed the draft audit with the Board and requested the Board approve 
the audit for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. After review, upon a motion brought by Director 
Cavazos, seconded by Director Castillo, the Board unanimously voted to approve the audit. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING SERVICES 
 
 Director Castillo outlined the proposals submitted for the Authority’s bookkeeper and 
stated the committee recommended the Board approve the proposal for Morton Accounting 
Firm. After consideration, upon a motion brought by Director Castillo, seconded by Director 
Cavazos, the Board approved the proposal submitted by Morton Accounting and authorize 
moving forwarding a contract with Morton Accounting. 
 
PROPOSED ANNEXATION 
 
 Mr. DeLeon reported that a meeting was held for the community regarding the proposed 
annexation. 
 
BOOKKEEPER’S REPORT  
 
 Mr. Coleman then presented the Bookkeeper’s report and invoices submitted for payment 
to the Board for review and approval.  A copy of the Bookkeeper’s report is attached hereto as 
Exhibit “C”.    
 
 Following discussion on the Bookkeeper’s report and the invoices submitted for payment, 
upon a motion made by Director Zamarripa and seconded by Director Cavazos, the Board voted 
unanimously to approve (i) the Bookkeeper’s report and the invoices submitted for payment, 
including the payment to Cypress Onsite; and (ii) amend the budget to include Cypress Onsite 
expenses. 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
 Resolution regarding Investment Policy and List of Broker/Dealers 
 
 The Board recognized Mr. Lord presented the Investment Policy and List of 
Broker/Dealers, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “D”. He stated that the Authority is 
required to review its investment policy and list of qualified brokers on an annual basis and 
recommended that no changes be made to the Investment Policy at this time. Mr. Lord stated that 
the list of qualified brokers was updated to reflect any banking changes. Upon a motion brought 
by Director Burke, seconded by Director Castillo, the Board unanimously voted to adopt the 
Investment Policy and List of Broker/Dealers. 
 
  
 



 

 3 

Disclosure Statement of Bookkeeper/Investment Officer 
 
 Mr. Lord next stated that the Board is also required annually to complete a disclosure 
statement of the investment officer and bookkeeper to note any conflicts with the investments of 
the Authority’s funds. Following discussion, upon a motion made by Director Burke, seconded 
by Director Castillo, the Board voted unanimously to accept the annual disclosure statement of 
the bookkeeper and investment officer of the Authority, and authorize Bracewell LLP to file the 
statement with the Texas Ethics Commission.  A copy of the annual disclosure statement of the 
bookkeeper and investment officer is attached to these minutes as Exhibit “E”. 
 

Consider approving renewing the Agreement for Services of Tax Consultant with Equi-
Tax Inc. 
 
Mr. Lord then reported that the agreement for services of Tax Consultant with Equi-Tax 

Inc. needed to be renewed and requested the Board’s approval, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “F”. After consideration, upon a motion brought by Director Burke, seconded 
by Director Zamarripa, the Board unanimously voted to approve the Agreement for Services of 
Tax Consultant with Equi-Tax Inc. 
 
HERNANDEZ TUNNEL 
 
 Mr. De Leon reported that pending change orders have added an additional eighty (80) 
days to the contract to repair the Hernandez Tunnel. No action was taken. 
 
THIRD AMENDED PROJECT PLAN REINVESTMENT ZONE FINANCING PLAN 
 
 Mr. DeLeon reported that the project plan has been updated and requested the Board 
approve the final form of the Third Amendment to the Project Plan. After review, upon a motion 
brought by Director Castillo, seconded by Director Burke, the Board unanimously approved the 
Third Amendment Project Plan.  
 
PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, OR UPDATES FROM DIRECTORS, CONSULTANTS, 
CITY OF HOUSTON STAFF, REGARDING DEVELOPMENT IN THE AUTHORITY 
AND ZONE AND IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECT PLAN AND REINVESTMENT 
ZONE FINANCING PLAN 
 
 No items were presented. 
 
CONVENE IN EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 551.087, CHAPTER 
551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 

The Board did not go into executive session. 



 

 4 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned.   

              
      Secretary  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

#6071710.2 



 
 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
 

OF 
 

REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWENTY-ONE, CITY OF HOUSTON 
 

September 23, 2019 

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Reinvestment Zone Number Twenty-One, City 
of Houston (the “Zone”) convened in regular session, open to the public, at 218 Joyce Street, 
Houston, Texas, 77009, on the 23rd day of September 2019, and the roll was called of the duly 
constituted officers and members of the Board, to-wit: 

   Edward Reyes  Chair/Assistant Secretary  
   Lloyd Burke   Vice Chair/Investment Officer  
   Sylvia Cavazos Secretary  
   Richard Cantu  Assistant Secretary 
   Fernando Zamarripa Assistant Secretary 
   Mario Castillo  Director 
 
All member of the Board of Directors were present except Director Cantu, thus constituting a 
quorum. 

Also present were: Clark Lord and Tiffany Ehmke of Bracewell LLP; Breland Coleman  
of Bentley, Bratcher & Associates, P.C. the Bookkeeper (the “Bookkeeper”); Ralph DeLeon of 
Tifworks; Tim Applewhite of McCall Gibson Swedlund Barfoot PLLC; and Joel Alba with the 
City of Houston (the “City”). Members of the public were present at the meeting and are 
referenced on the attached Exhibit “A”.  

Whereupon, the meeting was called to order. A copy of the notice of the meeting is 
attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 

DETERMINE QUORUM; CALL TO ORDER 

Director Reyes noted that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 No comments were given. 
 
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
 The Board considered approval of the minutes of June 10, 2019.  Following discussion, 
upon a motion made by Director Cavazos and seconded by Director Castillo, the Board voted 
unanimously to approve the minutes of June 10, 2019. 
 
 



 

 2 

APPROVAL OF AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019 
 
 Mr. Applewhite reviewed the draft audit with the Board and requested the Board approve 
the audit for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. After review, upon a motion brought by Director 
Cavazos, seconded by Director Castillo, the Board unanimously voted to approve the audit. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING SERVICES 
 
 Director Castillo outlined the proposals submitted for the Authority’s bookkeeper and 
stated the committee recommended the Board approve the proposal for Morton Accounting 
Firm. After consideration, upon a motion brought by Director Castillo, seconded by Director 
Cavazos, the Board approved the proposal submitted by Morton Accounting and authorize 
moving forwarding a contract with Morton Accounting. 
 
PROPOSED ANNEXATION 
 
 Mr. DeLeon reported that a meeting was held for the community regarding the proposed 
annexation. 
 
BOOKKEEPER’S REPORT  
 
 Mr. Coleman then presented the Bookkeeper’s report and invoices submitted for payment 
to the Board for review and approval.  A copy of the Bookkeeper’s report is attached hereto as 
Exhibit “C”.    
 
 Following discussion on the Bookkeeper’s report and the invoices submitted for payment, 
upon a motion made by Director Zamarripa and seconded by Director Cavazos, the Board voted 
unanimously to approve (i) the Bookkeeper’s report and the invoices submitted for payment, 
including the payment to Cypress Onsite; and (ii) amend the budget to include Cypress Onsite 
expenses. 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
 Resolution regarding Investment Policy and List of Broker/Dealers 
 
 The Board recognized Mr. Lord presented the Investment Policy and List of 
Broker/Dealers, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “D”. He stated that the Authority is 
required to review its investment policy and list of qualified brokers on an annual basis and 
recommended that no changes be made to the Investment Policy at this time. Mr. Lord stated that 
the list of qualified brokers was updated to reflect any banking changes. Upon a motion brought 
by Director Burke, seconded by Director Castillo, the Board unanimously voted to adopt the 
Investment Policy and List of Broker/Dealers. 
 
  
 



 

 3 

Disclosure Statement of Bookkeeper/Investment Officer 
 
 Mr. Lord next stated that the Board is also required annually to complete a disclosure 
statement of the investment officer and bookkeeper to note any conflicts with the investments of 
the Authority’s funds. Following discussion, upon a motion made by Director Burke, seconded 
by Director Castillo, the Board voted unanimously to accept the annual disclosure statement of 
the bookkeeper and investment officer of the Authority, and authorize Bracewell LLP to file the 
statement with the Texas Ethics Commission.  A copy of the annual disclosure statement of the 
bookkeeper and investment officer is attached to these minutes as Exhibit “E”. 
 

Consider approving renewing the Agreement for Services of Tax Consultant with Equi-
Tax Inc. 
 
Mr. Lord then reported that the agreement for services of Tax Consultant with Equi-Tax 

Inc. needed to be renewed and requested the Board’s approval, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “F”. After consideration, upon a motion brought by Director Burke, seconded 
by Director Zamarripa, the Board unanimously voted to approve the Agreement for Services of 
Tax Consultant with Equi-Tax Inc. 
 
HERNANDEZ TUNNEL 
 
 Mr. De Leon reported that pending change orders have added an additional eighty (80) 
days to the contract to repair the Hernandez Tunnel. No action was taken. 
 
THIRD AMENDED PROJECT PLAN REINVESTMENT ZONE FINANCING PLAN 
 
 Mr. DeLeon reported that the project plan has been updated and requested the Board 
approve the final form of the Third Amendment to the Project Plan. After review, upon a motion 
brought by Director Castillo, seconded by Director Burke, the Board unanimously approved the 
Third Amendment Project Plan.  
 
PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, OR UPDATES FROM DIRECTORS, CONSULTANTS, 
CITY OF HOUSTON STAFF, REGARDING DEVELOPMENT IN THE AUTHORITY 
AND ZONE AND IMPLEMENTATION OF PROJECT PLAN AND REINVESTMENT 
ZONE FINANCING PLAN 
 
 No items were presented. 
 
CONVENE IN EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 551.087, CHAPTER 
551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 

The Board did not go into executive session. 



 

 4 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned.   

              
      Secretary  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

#6071887.1 



HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE TIR #21

Balance Sheet
As of November 11, 2019

Nov. 11, 19

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

BBVA Compass 113,050.50

Tex Pool AC  7932300001 686,010.43

Total Checking/Savings 799,060.93

Total Current Assets 799,060.93

TOTAL ASSETS 799,060.93

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

*Accounts Payable 16,656.55

Total Liabilities 16,656.55

Equity

*Fund Balance 1,229,429.33

Net Income -447,024.95

Total Equity 782,404.38

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 799,060.93

No Assurance Is Provided.
Page #1



HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE TIR #21

Profit Loss Budget vs. Actual
July 1, 2019 through November 11, 2019

Actual Budget

July 1, 2019 - 
Nov. 11, 2019

Juy 1, 2019 - 
June 30, 2020 $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Grant Income - Construction 0.00 1,286,960.00 -1,286,960.00 0.00%

Interest Income checking 238.04 170.00 68.04 140.02%

Interest on TexPool 4,967.25 500.00 4,467.25 993.45%

Tax Increments 0.00 502,154.00 -502,154.00 0.00%

Total Income 5,205.29 1,789,784.00 -1,784,578.71 0.29%

Gross Profit 5,205.29 1,789,784.00 -1,784,578.71 0.29%

Expense

Program and Project Consultants

General Counsel Representation 1,273.75 20,000.00 -18,726.25 6.37%

Planning Consultants 17,825.00 25,000.00 -7,175.00 71.30%

Engineering Consultants 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.00%

Tax Consultants 778.50 2,000.00 -1,221.50 38.93%

Total Program and Project Consultants 19,877.25 57,000.00 -37,122.75 34.87%

TIRZ Administration  Overhead

Accounting Services 9,624.00 10,000.00 -376.00 96.24%

Administrative Services 2,371.40 8,000.00 -5,628.60 29.64%

Audit Services 6,500.00 10,000.00 -3,500.00 65.00%

Office Expense 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.00%

Insurance 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.00%

Bank Charges 58.59 0.00 58.59 100.00%

Total TIRZ Administration  Overhead 18,553.99 29,250.00 -10,696.01 63.43%

Developer Reimbursement 413,799.00 702,543.00 -288,744.00 58.90%

Total Expense 452,230.24 788,793.00 -336,562.76 57.33%

Net Income (Loss) -447,024.95 1,000,991.00 -1,448,015.95 -44.66%

No Assurance Is Provided.
Page #2



HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE TIRZ #21

Profit Loss Detail
July 1, 2019 through November 11, 2019

Type Date Memo Amount

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Interest Income checking

Deposit 07/01/2019 Interest 24.14

Deposit 08/01/2019 Interest 72.20

Deposit 09/03/2019 Interest 93.69

Deposit 10/01/2019 Interest 48.01

Total Interest Income checking 238.04

Interest on TexPool

Deposit 07/31/2019 Interest 1,381.06

Deposit 08/31/2019 Interest 1,258.54

Deposit 09/30/2019 Interest 1,215.74

Deposit 10/31/2019 Interest 1,111.91

Total Interest on TexPool 4,967.25

Total Income 5,205.29

Gross Profit 5,205.29

Expense

Program and Project Consultants

Planning Consultants

Bill 09/23/2019

General Consulting Services June through 
September 2019 6,975.00

Bill 11/06/2019

General Consulting Services September through 
October 2019 10,850.00

Total Planning Consultants 17,825.00

Legal Consultants

General Counsel Representation

Bill 10/03/2019

General Counsel services through September 30, 
2019 873.75

Bill 11/05/2019

General Counsel services through October 31, 
2019 400.00

Total General Counsel Representation 1,273.75

Total Legal Consultants 1,273.75

Tax Consultants

Bill 07/01/2019 Monthly Consultant Services fee per Contract 155.70

Bill 08/01/2019 Monthly Consultant Services fee per Contract 155.70

Bill 09/01/2019 Monthly Consultant Services fee per Contract 155.70

Bill 10/01/2019 Monthly Consultant Services fee per Contract 155.70

Bill 11/01/2019 Monthly Consultant Services fee per Contract 155.70

Total Tax Consultants 778.50

Total Program and Project Consultants 19,877.25

No Assurance Is Provided.
Page #3



HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE TIRZ #21

Profit Loss Detail
July 1, 2019 through November 11, 2019

TIRZ Administration  Overhead

Accounting Services

Bill 09/18/2019

Attendance of June 2019 Board meeting, Prepare 
for September 2019 Board meeting, Post Board 
meeting, Post Board meeting procedures, 
cooperation with City of Houston for Compliance 
Review, draft formal financial statements and 
footnotes for year-end audit, assist auditors with 
procedures 7,561.00

Bill 11/06/2019

Attendance of September 2019 Board meeting, 
Post Board meeting procedures, bookkeeping 
procedures through October 31, 2019, Preparation 
for November 11, 2019 board meeting 2,063.00

Total Accounting Services 9,624.00

Administrative Services

Bill 09/09/2019 Meeting services through August 31, 2019 213.00

Bill 10/03/2019 Meeting services through September 30, 2019 2,158.40

Total Administrative Services 2,371.40

Audit Services

Bill 09/12/2019 FYE 06.30.19 Audit - interim billing 6,500.00

Total Audit Services 6,500.00

Bank Charges

Check 07/15/2019 Service Charge 15.19

Check 08/15/2019 Service Charge 14.80

Check 09/16/2019 Service Charge 14.00

Check 10/15/2019 Service Charge 14.60

Total Bank Charges 58.59

Total TIRZ Administration  Overhead 18,553.99

Developer Reimbursement

Bill 09/23/2019 Reimbursement to CRV Hardy Yards 413,799.00

Total Developer Reimbursement 413,799.00

Total Expense 452,230.24

Net Loss -447,024.95

No Assurance Is Provided. 
Page #4



HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE TIRZ #21

Unpaid Bills Detail
As of November 11, 2019

Type Date Num Memo Open Balance Pages

Bentley, Bratcher & Associates, P.C.

Bill 11/06/2019 13030-001-029

Attendance of September 2019 Board meeting, Post 
Board meeting procedures, bookkeeping procedures 
through October 31, 2019, Preparation for November 
11, 2019 board meeting 2,063.00 6

Total Bentley, Bratcher & Associates, P.C. 2,063.00

BRACEWELL LLP

Bill 10/03/2019 21862275 Meeting services through September 30, 2019 2,158.40 7

Bill 10/03/2019 21862276

General Counsel services through September 30, 
2019 873.75 9

Bill 11/05/2019 21866005 General Counsel services through October 31, 2019 400.00 10

Total BRACEWELL LLP 3,432.15

Equi-Tax Inc.

Bill 10/01/2019 54504 Monthly Consultant Services fee per Contract 155.70 11

Bill 11/01/2019 54618 Monthly Consultant Services fee per Contract 155.70 12

Total Equi-Tax Inc. 311.40

TIFWorks, LLC

Bill 11/06/2019 12

General Consulting Services September through 
October 2019 10,850.00 13

Total TIFWorks, LLC 10,850.00

TOTAL 16,656.55

No Assurance Is Provided.
Page #5



• 
BENTLEY, BRATCHER & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 

Certified Public Accountants 

Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority 
515 W. Greens Rd., Suite 710 
Houston, TX 77067 

Invoice Date: November 6, 2019 
Invoice Number: 13030-001-029 

For professional services rendered through November 6, 2019 in 
connection with the following: 

•!• Prepare for September 2019 Board meeting which 
Including accounting and invoice payments 

•!• Attend September Board meeting 

•!• Post Board meeting procedures 

•!• Sign & Send Disclosure Document Public 
Funds Account 

•!• Bookkeeping procedures through October 31, 2019 

•!• Prepare for November 11, 2019 Board meeting 

as well as miscellaneous advice and consultation related thereto $ 2.063 

As a reminder, our invoices are due and payable within 30 days from the invoice date, noted above. Interest 
commences at the rate of 1.5% per month for any portion of a month the invoice is outstanding beyond this 
time period. 

• 515 West Greens Road, Suite 710 •Houston, Texas 77067-4525 • 281/875-8181 • Fax 281/875-9002 • www.bentleyassoc.com • 

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



INVOICE Date: 11/6/2019 
Invoice # Number 12 

 

TIFWorks, LLC 

P.O. Box 10330 

Houston, Texas 77206 

(832)-978-5910 

rdeleon1028@sbcglobal.net 

   To Ed Reyes 

Chairman of the Board 

Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority 

Tax Increment Investment Zone Number 

Twenty-One, City of Houston 

  
 

S a l e s p e r s o n  J o b  P a y m e n t  
T e r m s  

Ralph De Leon Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority  
General Consulting Services  

Due Upon 
Receipt  

 

Q t y  D e s c r i p t i o n  U n i t  P r i c e  L i n e  T o t a l  

Labor (Hours) Meetings, Travel, Mileage, Electronic Correspondence and Telephone Calls:    

2 
Electronic and telephonic correspondence September 21, 2019 
thru November 6, 2019, predominately with COH, HCD, 
Annexation/Project Plan Amendment related activities 

$150.00 $300.00 

1.5 
9/15/2019 – Review and edits Pay Application No. 3 Hernandez 
Tunnel Phase 2 Project, distribution and execution by Director 
including mileage and travel, distribution of same.  

S150.00  $225.00 

3.5 

9/23/2019 – Prepare and attend Board of Directors meeting, 
including edits to proposed Amended Project Plan and related 
Community Meeting materials needed for distribution and 
review, includes mileage and travel.  

$150.00 $525.00 

5 
9/28/2019 – Preparation of packets for review and distribution 
related to Amended Project Plan for meeting with ED Staff and 
CM Cisneros, includes parking, mileage and travel.  

$150.00 $750.00 

2 

10/9/2019 – Review and edits Pay Application No. 4 Hernandez 
Tunnel Phase 4 Project, distribution and execution by Director, 
concurrence of procedures regarding release of retainage to 
contractor, including mileage and travel, distribution of same.  

$150.00 $300.00 

3 

11/3/2019 – Generate Harris County TIRZ participation Revenue 
Projection Schedules and related narrative needed for proposed 
Amended Project Plan, update draft Amended Plan and 
distribution of same to COH.  

$150.00 $450.00 

2 

11/5/2019 – Review and edits to GLO Certificate of Construction 
Completion Hernandez Tunnel Phase 2, distribution and 
execution by Chairman needed for HCD, including mileage and 
travel.  

$150.00 $300.00 

LS 

10/29/2019-11/6/2019 – Preparation of Metes and Bounds 
Description for proposed Annexed Territory including retrieval of 
Plat and Parcel Legal Descriptions, and distribution of same to 
COH ED.  

LS $8,000.00 

S u b t o t a l  $10,850.00 
T o t a l  $10,850.00 

Make all checks payable to TIFWorks, LLC 

Thank you for your business! 
 

Page 13



 

rpsgroup.com 

1160 N Dairy Ashford 

Suite 500 

Houston, TX 77079 

T +1 281 589 7257  

 

Page 1 

PROGRESS REPORT 

Date: October 14, 2019 

Job No.: GLO Contract No. 14-236-000-8329             

RPS 1068.001.007   

Report Period: May 1, 2019 through September 27, 2019 

Reviewed By: Sylvester Johnson 

Project: GLO City of Houston Hernandez Tunnel 

 

Activities Completed for the Reporting Period 

• Completed tunnel and walkway spall and crack repair work, surface finishing and painting.  

• Completed asphalt pavement replacement, including striping and pavement markings. 

• Completed installation of traffic signs and crash attenuators.  

• Completed additional work required by change order for alternative light fixture supports, wall repairs 

and surface preparation.   

• Completed substantial inspection punch list items. 

• Completed final inspection 9/27/19. 

 

 

 

 

 







































 

rpsgroup.com 

1160 N Dairy Ashford 

Suite 500 

Houston, TX 77079 

T +1 281 589 7257  

 

Page 1 

PROGRESS REPORT 

Date: October 15, 2019 

Job No.: GLO Contract No. 14-236-000-8329             

RPS 1068.001.007   

Report Period:  through October 15, 2019 

Reviewed By: Sylvester Johnson 

Project: GLO City of Houston Hernandez Tunnel 

 

Activities Completed for the Reporting Period 

• Final pay estimate for retainage 

 

 

 

 

 

























 
#6071850.1 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING INVESTMENT OFFICER FOR 
HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

WHEREAS, Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority (the “Authority”) has been 
legally created and operates pursuant to the general laws of the State of Texas applicable to local 
government corporations, and has such authority as has been delegated to it by the City of Houston, 
Texas to act on behalf of Reinvestment Zone Number Twenty-One, City of Houston, Texas; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority wishes to appoint an Investment 
Officer to oversee the Authority’s investments pursuant to the Authority’s Investment Policy and 
pursuant to the Public Funds Investment Act, each as amended from time to time; NOW, 
THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HARDY/NEAR 
NORTHSIDE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1. The Authority hereby appoints Melissa Morton to serve as Investment 
Officer for the Authority. 

Section 2. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and 
upon its adoption. 

 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

  



 
#6071850.1 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 11th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
 
  
President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Secretary 



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWENTY-ONE 
CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS,  

 
 
 

HARDY NEAR NORTHSIDE ZONE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Third Amended 
Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 

 
 
 

September 23, 2019



REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWENTY-ONE, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS 
HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE ZONE 

Third Amended Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan 

Table of Contents 

Introduction ..................................................................................................................................1 

Section One  ..................................................................................................................................1 

The Part A Plan ............................................................................................................................1 
The Part B Plan ............................................................................................................................1 
The Part C Plan  ...........................................................................................................................1 

Section Two ..................................................................................................................................2 
The Part D Plan ............................................................................................................................2 

Proposed Goals for Improvements in the Zone: ....................................................................... 2 

Goal 1: Pedestrian Safe Environments .......................................................................................... 2 
Goal 2: Public Greenspace, Parks, Recreational Facilities ............................................................ 2 
Goal 3: Pedestrian-Attractive Retail Developments ...................................................................... 2 
Goal 4: Complimenting METRO Transit Initiatives ..................................................................... 3 
Goal 5: Cultural and Public Facilities, Affordable Housing .......................................................... 3 
Goal 6: Infrastructure Improvements .............................................................................................3 

A.     PROJECT PLAN ................................................................................................................3 
Existing & Proposed Uses of Land ................................................................................................3 
Proposed Changes of Zoning Ordinances, Municipality Master Plan, Building Codes, and 
   Other Municipal Ordinances .......................................................................................................3 
Estimated Non-Project Cost Items .................................................................................................4 
Statement of Method of Relocating Persons Displaced as Result of Implementing Plan .............4 

B.     FINANCING PLAN ............................................................................................................4 
Estimated Project Costs .................................................................................................................4 
Statement Listing Kind, Number, & Location of Proposed Public Works or 
  Improvements in Zone .................................................................................................................4 
Economic Feasibility .....................................................................................................................4 
Estimated Amount of Bond Indebtedness; Time When Related Costs or Monetary 
  Obligations Incurred ....................................................................................................................4 
Description of Methods & Sources of Financing Project Costs & Percentage of Increment 
  From Taxing Units .......................................................................................................................4 
Current Total Appraised Value of Taxable Real Property .............................................................5 
Estimated Captured Appraised Value of Zone During Each Year of Existence ...........................5 
Zone Duration ................................................................................................................................5 

i 



Maps and Exhibits: 

Map 1 – Map of Proposed and Existing Land Uses in Zone  

Exhibit 1 Parts A, B, C and D Plan Project Costs 

Exhibit 2 Part D Plan Net Revenue Schedule  

Exhibit 9 (Amended) Part D Plan Revenue Schedule (Original Area) City of Houston 

Exhibit 3 Part D  Plan Revenue Schedule (Annexed Area) City of Houston 

Exhibit 4 Part D Plan Revenue Schedule (Annexed Area) Harris County

ii 



1 

TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWENTY-ONE 
HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE ZONE 

PART D – THIRD AMENDED PROJECT PLAN 
AND REINVESTMENT ZONE FINANCING PLAN 

Amended September 23, 2019 

Introduction: 

Reinvestment Zone Number Twenty-One, City of Houston, Texas, also known as the Hardy/Near 
Northside Zone (“Zone”) was created by Ordinance No. 2003-1258 on December 17, 2003 for the 
purposes of development and redevelopment in an area covering approximately 326.1 acres and 
generally bounded by Quitman Street on the North, U.S. Highway 59 on the East, Interstate 10 on 
the South, and Interstate Highway 45 on the West.   The primary focus of the Zone was to address 
blighted conditions and provide programs to facilitate the development of affordable housing and 
mobility improvements.   

Section One: 

The Part A Plan: 
A Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan (Part A Plan) was adopted by the City on 
December 30, 2008 by Ordinance No. 2008-1212.  The Part A Plan called for the redevelopment 
of a former 43-acre Union Pacific rail yard site and the North Main Street area in general.  The 
Part A Plan also included provisions for the development of affordable housing and transit-oriented 
mixed-use development.  In addition, on May 27, 2009, by Ordinance No. 2009-432, the City and 
the Zone approved an Affordable Housing Agreement which provided that one-third of the City’s 
tax increment revenue be returned to the City to use for affordable housing.   

The Part B Plan: 
On November 10, 2009, by Resolution No. 2009-0032, the City approved the creation of the 
Hardy/Near Northside Redevelopment Authority (“Authority”).  The Authority was established to 
assist the City and the Zone Board of Directors in implementing the Part A Plan.  On December 9, 
2009, by Ordinance No. 2009-1272, the City adopted the First Amended Project Plan and 
Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan (Part B Plan).  The Part B Plan restated the goals and objectives 
included in the Part A Plan and added several new project costs, including provisions for upgrades 
and improvements to public utility systems, public roadways and thoroughfares, transit facilities, 
trail systems, parks, provisions for public art, lighting, landscaping, environmental remediation 
and for the design and construction of a potential grade separated extension of San Jacinto Street 
north to the southern terminus of Fulton Street.   

The Part C Plan: 
On August 15, 2012, the City, by Ordinance 2012-0710, adopted a second amendment to the Zone 
Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan (Part C Plan).  The Part C Plan restates the 
goals and objectives of the Part A and Part B Plans and provided for enhancements in the 326.1 
acres of the Zone covered by the Part A and Part B Plans.  In addition, the Part C Plan included 
provisions for an extension of the duration of the Zone, to December 31, 2040.   



2 
 

The Zone and the City now desire to further amend the Zone Project Plan and Financing Plan as 
further described herein (the “Part D Plan”).   
 
Section Two: 

The Part D Plan: 

The Zone and the City now desire to further amend the Plans as described herein (“Part D Plan”).  
The Part D Plan provides for a Zone area expansion and projects for the enhancement of and 
improvements to the newly annexed 1,154.52 acres of land.  The geographical area covered by the 
Part D Plan includes the areas covered by the Part A, Part B, Part C Plans.  Emphasis will be placed 
on roadway and street reconstruction projects, parks and related recreational facilities, public and 
cultural facilities, affordable housing, repair and replacement of drainage systems, and the design 
and construction of new public utility systems.  The Part D Plan, combined collectively with prior 
Plans, will provide the necessary tools to alleviate blight, deteriorated street and site conditions, 
and obsolete public services and facilities, conditions that endanger public safety while 
encouraging sound growth of residential, retail, and commercial development within the Zone. 

Together the Part A, Part B, Part C Plans combined with the Part D Plan, provide the tools needed 
to alleviate blight, deteriorated street and site conditions, obsolete public services and facilities and 
will encourage the sound growth of residential, retail, and commercial development in the Near 
Northside area.   
Proposed Goals for the Improvements in the Zone:  
Proposed and restated Goals for Improvements included in the Part D Plan relate to the original 
goals of the TIRZ and are as follows: 
 
Goal l:  Create pedestrian-friendly, safe environments through the reconstruction of streets and 
sidewalks, with ample lighting and streetscape amenities.   

Streetscape enhancements are required to create an environment to stimulate investment in retail, 
residential, and commercial developments.  Enhanced streetscape components include sidewalks, 
lighting, signage, street trees, landscaping, benches, and other pedestrian amenities. The 
construction of sidewalk systems, including ADA-compliant ramps, will improve pedestrian 
safety, enhance the visual environment, and provide connectivity both within the community and 
to adjacent districts.  

Goal 2: Redevelopment and upgrades to public green space, parks, and other appropriate 
recreational facilities.   

Public infrastructure, regional trail systems and other enhancements to area parks and other public 
open green space will attract and support redevelopment and improve the quality of life of area 
neighborhoods and visitors.  

Goal 3:  Expand pedestrian-attractive retail developments.   



3 
 

Providing base-level retail functionality is essential to the continued expansion of residential 
projects in the area through the implementation of enhanced pedestrian amenities with an emphasis 
on parking, lighting, street trees, landscaping, wide sidewalks, and public art. 

Goal 4: Metropolitan Transit Authority (METRO) Initiatives and complementing the revitalization 
activities proposed to occur along the METRO North Corridor Alignment.  

 METRO funding of public transit systems can be complemented by Zone activities including the 
funding of streetscape upgrades, right-of-way acquisition, and provisions for parking to serve retail 
needs.  The METRO Solutions North Corridor alignment located within the Zone includes a 
proposed Burnett Plaza Intermodal Terminal.  The planned facility would provide for light rail, 
bus services, car pool, and bicycle and pedestrian modes of transportation.  This METRO program, 
when executed, will significantly impact economic development within the Zone and facilitate the 
construction of transit-oriented development.  A primary goal of the Part C Plan is to maximize 
the positive economic impacts of the METRO initiatives.   

Goal 5:  Cultural and Public Facilities; Affordable Housing.   

Increasing public and cultural facilities and affordable housing for current residents as well as for 
the Downtown workforce is an important public policy goal of the Part C Plan.  Zone funds will 
be leveraged with private, public, and non-profit developers to integrate affordable housing into 
proposed redevelopment projects within the City. These projects, along with improved 
infrastructure, additional fire, police, library, and public health facilities, and cultural and 
community centers, will improve security and enhance the quality of life for existing and new 
residents and businesses in the Zone. 

Goal 6:  Infrastructure Improvements.   

Public streets and public utility systems are needed to create an environment that will stimulate 
private investment in retail, residential, multi-family, and commercial developments.  Construction 
of key streets and utility systems will enhance the level of service in the area, improve 
functionality, replace aged facilities, and improve aesthetics.  All roadway improvements will be 
integrated with the street reconstruction programs of the City of Houston, TXDOT, METRO, and 
others as needed, and where possible will include elements not included by those programs.  
Attention will be focused on leveraging TIRZ funds through the funding of elements not addressed 
by the capital improvement programs of sister agencies.   

A.  PROJECT PLAN 
 
Existing Uses of Land (Texas Tax Code §311.011(b)(1)):  Map 1 attached hereto depicts the 
existing land and proposed uses in the Zone.  The existing and proposed land uses include multi-
family residential, commercial, office, public and institutional, transportation and utility, park and 
open spaces, and undeveloped land uses.   
Proposed Changes of Zoning Ordinances, Master Plan of Municipality, Building Codes, and Other 
Municipal Ordinances (Texas Tax Code §311.011(b)(2)): All construction will be performed in 
conformance with the City’s existing rules and regulations.  There are no proposed changes to any 
City ordinance, master plan, or building code. 



4 
 

Estimated Non-Project Costs (Texas Tax Code §311.011(b)(3)):  The non-project costs reflect, in 
part, costs of the Greater Near Northside Management District, and the portion of their annual 
assessment revenues that will be spent within the Zone to fund public safety, cleaning and trash 
removal, landscape maintenance, pedestrian lighting, streetscape amenities, wayfinding, planning 
and capital project development, retail and business development programs, and marketing and 
communications.   

Method of Relocating Persons to be Displaced, if any, as a Result of Implementing the Plan  (Texas 
Tax Code §311.011(b)(4)):  It is not anticipated that any residents will be displaced by any of the 
projects to be undertaken in the Zone. 

B. REINVESTMENT ZONE FINANCING PLAN 
 
Estimated Project Costs (Texas Tax Code §311.011(c)(1)):  Exhibit 1 (attached) details the 
proposed public improvement and administrative project costs.  The dollar amounts are 
approximate and may be amended from time to time by City Council.  The financing costs are a 
function of project financing needs and will vary with market conditions from the estimates shown 
on Exhibit 1. 
Proposed kind, Number, and Location of all Proposed Public Works or Public Improvements to 
be Financed in the TIRZ (Texas Tax Code §311.011(c)(2)): These details are described throughout 
the Plan. 
Economic Feasibility Study and Finding of Feasibility (Texas Tax Code §311.011(c)(3)):  
Economic feasibility studies have been completed that demonstrate the economic potential of the 
TIRZ including a Survey of Housing Demand conducted by CDS Market Research in 1999, the 
Northside Village Economic Redevelopment Plan conducted by the City of Houston Planning 
Department in 2001, and the Planned Development Relative to Total Market Demand Study 
conducted by CDS Market Research in 2003.  Exhibits 2, 3 and 9a, constitute incremental revenue 
estimates for the Zone.  The incremental revenue estimates are projected to be sufficient to cover 
the costs of the proposed redevelopment and infrastructure improvements in the Zone.  The Part 
D Plan estimates total project costs of $100,000,000.  The TIRZ and the City find and determine 
that the Part A, Part B, Part C, and Part D Plans are economically feasible.   

Estimated Amount of Bond Indebtedness; Estimated Time When Related Costs or Monetary 
Obligations Incurred; Approval of Issuance by the Authority (Texas Tax Code §311.011(c)(4), 
§311.011(c)(5)):  Issuance of notes and bonds by or on behalf of the Zone will occur as tax 
increment revenues allow.  The amount of such bonds will be determined by the increment 
available and shall be in the amount of the Project Costs, plus the costs of issuance.  The value and 
timing of the issuance of notes or bonds will correlate to debt capacity as derived from the attached 
revenue and project schedules, as well as actual market conditions for the issue and sale of such 
notes and bonds. 

Methods and Sources of Financing Project Costs and Percentage of Increment from Taxing Units 
Anticipated to Contribute Tax Increment to the Zone (Texas Tax Code §311.011(c)(6)):  Methods 
and sources of financing include the issuance of notes and bonds, as well as collaboration with 
developers and other entities for grant funding and partnerships.  Tax Year 2003 was the base year 
of the Original area of the Zone, Tax Year 2018 is the base year for the proposed Annexed Area 



5 

of the Zone.  As outlined in Exhibits 2, 3, 4 and 9a, approximately $110.2 million of increment is 
estimated to be generated over the remaining life of the Zone, and available for use in funding 
project costs. This figure is calculated using an estimated collection rate of 95% and a City 
contribution of $0.588310/$100 of assessed valuation. It is also anticipated that Harris County will 
enter into a participation Agreement based on the 2019 Annexed Area.  This additional increment 
is calculated using an estimated collection rate of 95% and a County contribution of 
$0.407130/$100 of assessed valuation.   

Current Total Appraised Value of Taxable Real Property (Texas Tax Code §311.011(c)(7)):  The 
current projected appraised Tax Year 2019 value of taxable real property in the Zone, as of 
September 23, 2019, is $203,864,946.  Base year values are computed with regard to the original 
Zone, and all annexations, in accordance with Texas Tax Code §311.012. 

Estimated Captured Appraised Value of Zone During Each Year of Existence (Texas Tax Code 
§311.011(c)(8)):  The estimated captured appraised value for the remaining duration of the Zone
is set forth in Exhibit 2, 3, 4 and 9a. 

Zone Duration (Texas Tax Code §311.011(c)(9)):  When initially created by City Council on 
December 17, 2003, the term of the Zone was established at 30 years.  Due to the magnitude of 
development within and adjacent to the Zone, an increased demand continues to be placed on the 
already-distressed infrastructure then what was originally projected, by Ordinance 2012-0710, 
adopted by the City on August 15, 2012, and in accordance with Texas Tax Code §311.007(c) the 
termination date of the Zone was extended to December 31, 2040 as part of the Part C Plan. The 
proposed improvements included in the Part A, Part B, Part C, and Part D Plan, are needed to 
adequately address future infrastructure needs and related quality of life issues resulting from 
current and projected densities; in all respects; provided that increment available to the Zone with 
respect to the Zone area expansion shall not be available for payments under development 
agreements executed prior to the approval of this amendment by City Council. 



Maps and Exhibits 

  



I

City of Houston
Proposed Hardy/Near Northside

Landuse

Source:      COHGIS Data
Date:          September 2017
Reference: PJ19190_Landuse

0 2,2501,125
Feet

US 59

MAIN

IH 45

IH 610

US 59

JENSEN

FULTON

ELYSIAN
HARDY

LYONS

ENID

14TH

CHAPMAN

GREGG
REID

QUITMAN

MICHAUX

CRANE

AIRLINE

RUSSELL

LINK

SUE

CLINTON

MAURY

WEISS

IRVINGTON

PATTON

COLLINGSWORTH

HOUSTON

WHITE OAK

TERRYSTUDEWOOD

CAPLIN

MOODY

CA
RR

HAIN

GALE

HAYS

GANO

GOLD

SIL
VE

R

BAER

AURORA

GENTRY

STEVENS

EUCLID

SHEARN

WOODARD

NORHILL

JOYCE

BRINGHURST

JAMES

BAYLAND

REAGAN

EDISON

CROCKETT

HOGAN

LORRAINE

CORDELL

SPRING

MELBOURNE

KELLEY

EDWARDS

MA
RY

WINTER

FRAWLEY

MERRILL

7TH

MEADOW

HARRINGTON

HENRY

AVERILL

STAPLES

BEGGS

PECORE

ENGLISH

HIGHLAND

RIDGE

EUEL

SAW
YER

IVY

BARON

COCHRAN

ELEANOR

NORTHWOOD

HAILEY

REDAN

NANCE

MCKEE

BINGHAM

ORR

ALBER

BIGELOW

KING

TEMPLE

FINCH

BAIN

CANADIAN

HALPERN

SIEGEL

FAIRBANKS

6TH 1/2

MAFFITT

LINN

7TH 1/2

LUBBOCK

PEDDIE

BUNTON

CHESTNUT

ADELE

MILWAUKEE

EGYPT

GIBBS

23RD

KERN

FLETCHER

ALGREGG

CHASE

WOODLAND

DES CHAUMESBILLINGSLEY

OLIVER

EVERETT

GRACELAND

PASCHALL

PIZER

FUGATE

NADINE

ARCHER

GREEN

BEAUCHAMP

SEMMES

GAINES

HILL

CLINE

VINCENT

TARLEY

KEY

WHITE

COAL

EVELYN

LEONA

PINCKNEY

MELWOOD

SHELBY

HU
NT

IN
G

GRIFFIN

MOORE

CETTI

COMMON

LOUISE

MARION

TA
YL

OR

TEETSHORN

LINDER

ROBBIE

MORRISON

CAPRON

USENER

BAY

SUMMER

NECHES

MEMEL

WEBER

DAVIS
JONES

CACTUS

FISK

HELEN

VIN
E

HESLEP

ROTHWELL

JEWETT

LUCILLE

HARDY TOLL

SHARMAN

MALVERN

OVID

DART

BOSWELL
BRILL

AVENUE OF OAKS

UNION

LINE

MO
SS

EDSEE

MCNEIL

CHERRY

LUZON

BAYOU

CONTI

SCHALKER

PANAMA

BLEKER

BAYLOR

VINTAGE

BOOTH

LE GREEN

MELVA

ARKANSAS

HAMBLEN

LE BADIE

24TH

CAMPBELL

DUNBAR

GAY

MARIE

RALSTON

SERVICE

PITTMAN

DALY

DELIA

GARDNER

BREW
STER

BOUNDARY

TARVER

PRINCETON

RETTA

BRAGG

LEGION

MORRIS

HARDIE

ELSER

ALAMO

PORTER

FRISCO

FRANKLIN

ADELIA

HE
MP

HI
LL

RYON

WYNNE

JOHNSON

LILAC

ERIN

MILAM

WOOD

MOP

KENNON

TABOR

QU
ITM

AN
 N

B 
59

 N
 EN

T

WENDEL

AMUNDSEN

ROGERS

PRESTON

WEEMS

CODY

COSMOS

WEST

MARTHA

CONOLY

TUSCON

WINNIE

FLORIDA

1s
t

STONEWALL

BADEN

HOLLY

TORREON

SHEA

ROLAND

TYLER

BISHOP

COTTAGE

PETTIT

OMEGA

BRACKENRIDGE

PAYNE

KARCHER

SYLVESTER

HE
LM

ER
S

NAYLOR

SA
N 

JA
CI

NT
O

NEWHOFF

WA
LT

ON

SA
BI

NE

GENOVA

TRINITY

MCINTOSH

BATTERSON

BYRNE

GARGAN

FREEMAN

MCEWEN

THOMAS
KENTUCKY

CHICKERING

BRISTOL

TRAVIS

CARL

TACKABERRY

HILLSTAR

DELANEY

DU
NL

OP

GLASGOW

WILKES

HORTON

GIRARD

WALLING

HINTON

EICHWURZEL

SE
AR

LE
CORONADO

GEORGE

CHRISTIE

KANE

PA
IN

E

CALENDAR

ROBERT LEE

SARAH

GOLD
ENROD

EL
DE

R

STERRETT

SAGE

PARKVIEW

CHURCHILL

IDYLWILD

ROBERTSON

ROYDER

WA
TS

ON

NORMA

WRIGHTWOOD

GARVIN

AVERNUS

MOSES

ODIN

MARIGOLD

CLEMENT

RI
ES

NE
R

CRANDON

ASH

OP
AL

LLOYD

DELL

GROVE

IDEAL

KEENE

KERMIT

ANGELO

HENDERSON

DELHI

VERNON

SOUTH

WHITTY

HAMMOCK

WINSTON

OPELOUSAS

VOIGHT

WALNUT

DIESEL

ANGELINE

QUINN

GLADYS

ADA

SHELLEY

EUNICE

OAKRIDGE

SYDNOR

JOSEPHINE

LULA

RE
YN

OL
DS

THRELKELD MILLS

RI
CH

EY

JEROME

RAILEY

LYONS ALLEY

GOLIAD

COLORADO

EMIR
BURNETT

RU
RA

L

NA
TIO

NA
L

ALMA

STUDE

PINERIDGE

LEWIS

REIN

DARTER

DATE

FR
EE

MO
NT

MAUD

LAZARAS

ARMSTEAD

HOGG

WILLIAM

BROOKS

BARDWELL

POSEY

THELMA

FULMER

MAINFORD

SAWYER HEIGHTS

DECATUR

MATHIS

EUROPA

MYRTLE
BRASHEAR

BARNSTON

JULIAN

SLEDGE

DE
 G

EO
RG

E
DANNA

MORIN

KIRKWOOD

HICKORY

MA
SS

IE

HA
RR

IS

BEACHTON

DEPELCHIN

FO
RE

ST
ER

EMBRY

BRUCE

CRITTENDEN

GROVEY

CAGE

KASHMERE BOF

TRENTHAM

ELROY

CLARK

GLASER

KARNES

BECK

GRAYSON

MCCALL

ROANOKE

FLORENCE

EASTMAN

GLE
N PA

RK

HIENSLEY

LENARD

BR
AD

LE
Y

REDWING PLACE

SE
MM

ES
T

COMMON PARK

DE
W

EY

BERGIN

GROTA BOONE

GREENLEAF

QUANNAH

COTSWOLD

OLEANDER

GRIGSBY

PL
AZ

A D
EL

 SO
L

GR
IN

NE
LL

MAV
ERICK

EM
ER

AL
D

TRIMBLE

NELKINS

WINTER

CLINE

COLORADO

BAY

DE
S 

CH
AU

ME
S

SHELBY

GIRARD

NOBLE

ALBER

REID

GO
LIA

D

MORRIS

DES CHAUMES

LOOP

CAPLIN

HOLLY

AVENUE OF OAKS
BREW

STER

ENID

CHAPMAN

REID

CHAPMAN

CAPRON

CORONADO

ROBERTSON

HENDERSON

WALNUT

BRACKENRIDGE

LINK

RYON

NANCE

BUCK

29TH

CAPLIN

BYRNE

DUNBAR

TABOR

CURTIS

BURNETT

HOLLY

WATSON

NOBLE

EVELYN

FARMER

JU
LIA

N

JEROME

WE
ST

34TH
SAYERS

HI
CK

OR
Y

CAGE

CHAPMAN

IH 10

SYDNOR

CAGE

SUMMER

NEWHOFF

ELDER

RAILEY

BRACKENRIDGE

TAYLOR

OAKRIDGE

FREEMAN

DAVIS

NORTHWOOD

ELSER

MARTHA

PROVIDENCE

COMMON

GENOVA

JU
LIA

N

NANCE
IH 10

LUZON

CARR

RETTA

TABOR

CRITTENDEN

NEW ORLEANS

DAVIS

SA
BI

NE
LE BADIE

WALLING

TAYLOR

REDAN

EASTMAN

COTTAGE

WALLING

DART

ELSER

THOMAS

WINTER

CHERRY

NORHILL

JENSEN

LINDER

CL
AR

K

26TH

TAYLOR

NOBLE

BLEKER

SABINE

CAMPBELL

34TH

JOHNSON

ORANGE

TEMPLE

REDAN

IH 45

AURORA

CLINE

MELWOOD

SAYERS

MAFFITT

SABINE

BARDWELL

NORTH

ERIN

HELMERS

GALE

WOODARD

DECATUR

JO
HN

SO
N

WINTER

BUCK

LINK

SEMMES

ERIN

SUMPTER

CAGE

COCHRAN

IH 45

NANCE

HARE

HICKORY

CONTI

WALTON

OAKRIDGE

MCKEE

MORRIS

ROBERT LEE

KEENE

CHERRY

GROVE

RAWLEY

28TH

GRACELAND

32ND 1/2

FAIRBANKS

BROOKS

JEWEL

SYDNOR

HALPERN

CARL

LELIA

VINCENT

MARKET

KANE

CODY

MILWAUKEE

ENGLISH

REID

KEY

NORMA

PINERIDGE

FRAWLEY

BRACKENRIDGE

31ST

TA
BO

R

VINTAGE

JULIAN

PARDEE

PROVIDENCE

BUCK

BAER

HARDY

CRANDON

COCHRAN

MAURY

PANNELL

GANO

CETTI

IH 610

HARRINGTON

HENDERSON

MOORE

OPELOUSAS

27TH

IVY

NORTH

US 59

EAST

CAMPBELL

CHICKERING

BRINGHURST

VINCENT

EVELLA

SUMPTER

CARR

REID

PATTON

REID

SYDNOR

FAIRBANKS

CETTI

MORRIS

MOORE

SUMPTER

CAMPBELL

MORRIS

NOBLE

LIBERTY

HICKORY

HOGG

GOLIAD

WHITE

STERRETT

ADELIA

SYLVESTER

AMUNDSEN

EA
ST

EX

JEWEL
PECORE

MAURY

PROVIDENCE

BAYOU

LEONA

GARDNER

COTTAGE

BRILL

TERRY
CHRISTIE

CRANE

WA
YN

E

LEE

FUGATE

MAURY

BAIN

HEMPHILL

EVERETT

NORTHWOOD

WATSON

EVELLA

OATS

GIRARD

CETTI

ELSER

MILLS

HE
MP

HI
LL

MCCALL

LOUISE

LEE

STAPLES

ROBERTSON

GROVE

WOODARD

ELSER

WEST

CORONADO

QUITMAN

CHERRY

CACTUS

BYRNE

LINN

NEWHOFF

Legend
Land Use

Single-Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Commercial
Office
Industrial
Public & Institutional
Transportation & Utility
Park & Open Spaces
Agriculture Production
Undeveloped
Unknown

TIRZ As Englarged



Maps and Exhibits 



Exhibit 1 

P
ro

je
c

t 
C

o
s

t 
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

: T
h

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g

 ta
b

le
 in

cl
u

d
e

s
 th

e
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

o
s

t f
o

r 
th

e
 P

a
rt

s
 A

, B
 &

 C
 P

la
n

s
 

a
n

d
 th

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 m
a

d
e

 to
 th

o
s

e
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 th

ro
u

g
h

 th
is

 P
a

rt
 D

 A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t: 
 

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
:

 E
s

ti
m

at
e

d
 

C
o

s
ts

20
08

 P
la

n
 

 E
s

ti
m

at
e

d
 

C
o

s
ts

20
09

 P
la

n
 

 E
s

ti
m

at
e

d
 

C
o

s
ts

20
12

 P
la

n
 

 E
s

ti
m

at
e

d
 

C
o

s
ts

20
19

 P
la

n
 

 T
o

ta
l C

o
s

ts
 C

o
s

t
T

h
ro

u
g

h
06

/3
0/

20
16

 
 R

e
m

ai
n

in
g

 
C

o
s

ts
 

R
o

a
d

w
a

y 
a

n
d

 S
id

e
w

a
lk

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 -
 P

a
rt

s
 A

, B
 &

 C
 

R
o

a
d

w
a

y,
 S

id
e

w
a

lk
 a

n
d

 L
a

n
d

s
ca

p
e

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

1
6

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

 
2

1
,6

9
2

,0
0

0
$

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3
7

,6
9

2
,0

0
0

$
   

 
1

0
,0

7
4

,9
1

2
$

   
 

2
7

,6
1

7
,0

8
8

$
   

R
o

a
d

w
a

y 
a

n
d

 S
id

e
w

a
lk

 -
 P

a
rt

 D
R

o
a

d
w

a
y,

 S
id

e
w

a
lk

 a
n

d
 B

ri
d

g
e

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

 
6

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

T
o

ta
l R

o
a

d
w

a
y,

 S
id

e
w

a
lk

s
 a

n
d

 B
ri

d
g

e
s

 -
 P

a
rt

s
 A

, B
, C

 &
 D

1
6

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

 
2

1
,6

9
2

,0
0

0
$

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

 
9

7
,6

9
2

,0
0

0
$

   
 

1
0

,0
7

4
,9

1
2

$
   

 
8

7
,6

1
7

,0
8

8
$

   
P

u
b

lic
 U

ti
lit

y 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 -

 P
a

rt
s

 A
, B

 &
 C

 
P

u
b

lic
 U

til
ity

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
,9

2
9

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
5

,9
5

5
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

7
,8

8
4

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7

,8
8

4
,0

0
0

$
   

  
P

u
b

lic
 U

ti
lit

y 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 -

 P
a

rt
 D

P
u

b
lic

 U
til

ity
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
 

4
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

 
-

$
 

4
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

T
o

ta
l P

u
b

lic
 U

ti
lit

y 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 -

 P
a

rt
s

 A
, B

, C
 &

 D
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1

,9
2

9
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

5
,9

5
5

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
4

7
,8

8
4

,0
0

0
$

   
 

-
$

 
4

7
,8

8
4

,0
0

0
$

   
T

o
ta

l I
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c

tu
re

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 -
 P

a
rt

s
 A

, B
, C

 &
 D

1
6

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

 
2

3
,6

2
1

,0
0

0
$

   
 

5
,9

5
5

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
6

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
 

1
4

5
,5

7
6

,0
0

0
$

  
1

0
,0

7
4

,9
1

2
$

   
 

1
3

5
,5

0
1

,0
8

8
$

 

O
th

e
r 

P
ro

je
c

t 
C

o
s

ts
:

P
a

rk
s

 a
n

d
 R

e
c

re
a

ti
o

n
a

l F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 -

 P
a

rt
s

 A
, B

 &
 C

 
P

a
rk

s
, P

la
za

s
 a

n
d

 P
u

b
lic

 S
p

a
ce

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

-
$

 
1

,4
4

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

2
,8

8
8

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
4

,3
2

8
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

-
$

 
4

,3
2

8
,0

0
0

$
   

  
P

a
rk

a
n

d
 R

e
c

re
a

ti
o

n
a

l F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 -

 P
a

rt
 D

P
a

rk
s

, P
la

za
s

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic
 S

p
a

ce
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
-

$
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

 
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
 

-
$

 
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
o

ta
l P

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

a
l F

a
c

ili
ti

e
s

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 -
 P

a
rt

s
 A

, B
, C

 &
 D

-
$

 
1

,4
4

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

2
,8

8
8

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
 

2
9

,3
2

8
,0

0
0

$
   

 
-

$
 

2
9

,3
2

8
,0

0
0

$
   

L
a

n
d

 A
c

q
u

is
it

io
n

 -
 P

a
rt

s
 P

a
rt

s
 A

, B
 &

 C
 

L
a

n
d

 A
s

s
e

m
b

ly
, S

ite
 P

re
p

a
ra

tio
n

, E
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l R

e
m

e
d

ia
tio

n
-

$
 

4
,8

2
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
-

$
 

4
,8

2
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
-

$
 

4
,8

2
0

,0
0

0
$

   
  

L
a

n
d

 A
c

q
u

is
it

io
n

 -
 P

a
rt

 D
L

a
n

d
 A

s
s

e
m

b
ly

, S
ite

 P
re

p
a

ra
tio

n
, E

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l R
e

m
e

d
ia

tio
n

-
$

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

-
$

 
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

  
T

o
ta

l L
a

n
d

 A
c

q
u

is
it

io
n

 -
 P

a
rt

s
 A

, B
 &

 C
-

$
 

4
,8

2
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
-

$
 

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
9

,8
2

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

-
$

 
9

,8
2

0
,0

0
0

$
   

  

P
ro

je
c

t 
Fi

n
a

n
c

in
g

 C
o

s
ts

 -
 P

a
rt

s
 A

, B
 &

 C
 

F
in

a
n

ci
n

g
 C

o
s

t
1

,7
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

1
,7

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
-

$
 

1
,7

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
  

T
o

ta
l P

ro
je

c
t 

Fi
n

a
n

c
in

g
 C

o
s

ts
 -

 P
a

rt
s

 A
, B

, C
 &

 D
1

,7
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

1
,7

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
-

$
 

1
,7

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
  

Z
o

n
e

 C
re

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
 -

 P
a

rt
s

 A
, B

 &
 C

 
Z

o
n

e
 C

re
a

tio
n

 a
n

d
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

tio
n

2
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

4
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
3

9
1

,0
4

7
$

   
   

   
 

3
,8

0
8

,9
5

3
$

   
  

T
o

ta
l C

re
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

 C
o

s
ts

 -
 P

a
rt

s
 A

, B
, C

 &
 D

2
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

4
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
3

9
1

,0
4

7
$

   
   

   
 

3
,8

0
8

,9
5

3
$

   
  

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

o
s

ts
 -

 P
a

rt
s

 A
, B

 &
 C

 
A

ffo
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

1
2

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

 
7

,4
2

0
,8

7
4

$
   

   
 

8
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
3

2
,9

2
0

,8
7

4
$

   
 

9
2

8
,7

8
9

$
   

   
   

 
3

1
,9

9
2

,0
8

5
$

   
A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 C
o

s
ts

 -
 P

a
rt

 D
 

A
ffo

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s

in
g

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

T
o

ta
l A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 C
o

s
ts

 -
P

a
rt

s
 A

, B
, C

 &
 D

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
1

2
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
 

7
,4

2
0

,8
7

4
$

   
   

 
8

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

3
2

,9
2

0
,8

7
4

$
   

 
9

2
8

,7
8

9
$

   
   

   
 

3
1

,9
9

2
,0

8
5

$
   

T
o

ta
l O

th
e

r 
P

ro
je

c
t 

C
o

s
ts

 -
 P

a
rt

s
 A

, B
, C

 &
 D

8
,9

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
1

8
,7

6
0

,0
0

0
$

   
 

1
0

,3
0

8
,8

7
4

$
   

 
4

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
 

7
7

,9
6

8
,8

7
4

$
   

 
1

,3
1

9
,8

3
6

$
   

   
 

7
6

,6
4

9
,0

3
8

$
   

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 P

L
A

N
 T

O
T

A
L

2
4

,9
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

 
4

2
,3

8
1

,0
0

0
$

   
 

1
6

,2
6

3
,8

7
4

$
   

 
1

0
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
  

2
2

3
,5

4
4

,8
7

4
$

  
1

1
,3

9
4

,7
4

8
$

   
 

2
1

2
,1

5
0

,1
2

6
$

 



Exhibit 2 

TY
 Increment 
Revenue 

Less Transfers 
and Affordable 

Housing

Net Revenue (Less 
Transfers and 

Affordable 
Housing)

2019 812,050$                311,286$                500,764$                 

2020 1,090,822$            381,768$                709,054$                 

2021 1,383,533$            455,774$                927,759$                 

2022 1,690,879$            533,480$                1,157,399$             

2023 2,013,592$            615,071$                1,398,521$             

2024 2,352,441$            700,742$                1,651,699$             

2025 2,708,233$            790,697$                1,917,536$             

2026 3,081,814$            885,150$                2,196,665$             

2027 3,474,075$            984,325$                2,489,750$             

2028 3,885,948$            1,088,458$            2,797,490$             

2029 4,318,415$            1,197,799$            3,120,616$             

2030 4,772,505$            1,312,606$            3,459,899$             

2031 5,249,300$            1,433,154$            3,816,146$             

2032 5,749,935$            1,559,730$            4,190,205$             

2033 6,275,601$            1,692,634$            4,582,968$             

2034 6,827,551$            1,832,183$            4,995,368$             

2035 7,407,098$            1,978,709$            5,428,388$             

2036 8,015,622$            2,132,563$            5,883,060$             

2037 8,654,573$            2,294,108$            6,360,465$             

2038 9,325,471$            2,463,731$            6,861,740$             

2039 10,029,914$          2,641,835$            7,388,079$             

2040 11,100,181$          2,955,575$            8,144,606$             

110,219,554$        30,241,377$          79,978,177$           



Exhibit 9a 

T
a

x
 Y

e
a

r
B

a
se

 V
a

lu
e

s 
P

ro
je

ct
e

d
 V

a
lu

e

C
a

p
tu

re
d

 
A

p
p

ra
is

e
d

 V
a

lu
e

C
o

ll
e

ct
io

n
 

R
a

te
T

a
x

 R
a

te
In

cr
e

m
e

n
t

 R
e

ve
n

u
e

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

C
it

y 
A

d
m

in
 

(5
%

)
N

e
t 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

(L
e

ss
 

T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 a
n

d
 A

H
)

20
18

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
18

1,
73

8,
41

9
$ 

  
14

1,
42

5,
33

9
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

76
3,

02
4

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

25
4,

34
1.

22
$ 

  
38

,1
51

$ 
  

  
  

  
47

0,
53

1
$

 

20
19

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
19

0,
82

5,
34

0
$ 

  
15

0,
51

2,
26

0
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

81
2,

05
0

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

27
0,

68
3.

26
$ 

  
40

,6
02

$ 
  

  
  

  
50

0,
76

4
$

 

20
20

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
20

0,
36

6,
60

7
$ 

  
16

0,
05

3,
52

7
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

86
3,

52
7

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

28
7,

84
2.

40
$ 

  
43

,1
76

$ 
  

  
  

  
53

2,
50

8
$

 

20
21

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
21

0,
38

4,
93

7
$ 

  
17

0,
07

1,
85

7
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

91
7,

57
8

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

30
5,

85
9.

50
$ 

  
45

,8
79

$ 
  

  
  

  
56

5,
84

0
$

 

20
22

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
22

0,
90

4,
18

4
$ 

  
18

0,
59

1,
10

4
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

97
4,

33
2

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

32
4,

77
7.

45
$ 

  
48

,7
17

$ 
  

  
  

  
60

0,
83

8
$

 

20
23

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
23

1,
94

9,
39

3
$ 

  
19

1,
63

6,
31

3
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
03

3,
92

4
$ 

  
  

  
34

4,
64

1.
30

$ 
  

51
,6

96
$ 

  
  

  
  

63
7,

58
6

$
 

20
24

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
24

3,
54

6,
86

3
$ 

  
20

3,
23

3,
78

3
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
09

6,
49

5
$ 

  
  

  
36

5,
49

8.
35

$ 
  

54
,8

25
$ 

  
  

  
  

67
6,

17
2

$
 

20
25

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
25

5,
72

4,
20

6
$ 

  
21

5,
41

1,
12

6
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
16

2,
19

5
$ 

  
  

  
38

7,
39

8.
24

$ 
  

58
,1

10
$ 

  
  

  
  

71
6,

68
7

$
 

20
26

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
26

8,
51

0,
41

6
$ 

  
22

8,
19

7,
33

6
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
23

1,
17

9
$ 

  
  

  
41

0,
39

3.
13

$ 
  

61
,5

59
$ 

  
  

  
  

75
9,

22
7

$
 

20
27

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
28

1,
93

5,
93

7
$ 

  
24

1,
62

2,
85

7
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
30

3,
61

3
$ 

  
  

  
43

4,
53

7.
77

$ 
  

65
,1

81
$ 

  
  

  
  

80
3,

89
5

$
 

20
28

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
29

6,
03

2,
73

4
$ 

  
25

5,
71

9,
65

4
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
37

9,
66

9
$ 

  
  

  
45

9,
88

9.
64

$ 
  

68
,9

83
$ 

  
  

  
  

85
0,

79
6

$
 

20
29

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
31

0,
83

4,
37

1
$ 

  
27

0,
52

1,
29

1
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
45

9,
52

7
$ 

  
  

  
48

6,
50

9.
10

$ 
  

72
,9

76
$ 

  
  

  
  

90
0,

04
2

$
 

20
30

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
32

6,
37

6,
08

9
$ 

  
28

6,
06

3,
00

9
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
54

3,
37

9
$ 

  
  

  
51

4,
45

9.
53

$ 
  

77
,1

69
$ 

  
  

  
  

95
1,

75
0

$
 

20
31

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
34

2,
69

4,
89

4
$ 

  
30

2,
38

1,
81

4
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
63

1,
42

2
$ 

  
  

  
54

3,
80

7.
49

$ 
  

81
,5

71
$ 

  
  

  
  

1,
00

6,
04

4
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

20
32

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
35

9,
82

9,
63

9
$ 

  
31

9,
51

6,
55

9
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
72

3,
86

9
$ 

  
  

  
57

4,
62

2.
84

$ 
  

86
,1

93
$ 

  
  

  
  

1,
06

3,
05

2
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

20
33

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
37

7,
82

1,
12

1
$ 

  
33

7,
50

8,
04

1
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
82

0,
93

7
$ 

  
  

  
60

6,
97

8.
96

$ 
  

91
,0

47
$ 

  
  

  
  

1,
12

2,
91

1
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

20
34

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
39

6,
71

2,
17

7
$ 

  
35

6,
39

9,
09

7
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
92

2,
85

9
$ 

  
  

  
64

0,
95

2.
89

$ 
  

96
, 1

43
$ 

  
  

  
  

1,
18

5,
76

3
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

20
35

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
41

6,
54

7,
78

5
$ 

  
37

6,
23

4,
70

5
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

2,
02

9,
87

7
$ 

  
  

  
67

6,
62

5.
51

$ 
  

10
1,

49
4

$ 
  

  
  

 
1,

25
1,

75
7

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
36

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
43

7,
37

5,
17

5
$ 

  
39

7,
06

2,
09

5
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

2,
14

2,
24

5
$ 

  
  

  
71

4,
08

1.
77

$ 
  

10
7,

11
2

$ 
  

  
  

 
1,

32
1,

05
1

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
37

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
45

9,
24

3,
93

3
$ 

  
41

8,
93

0,
85

3
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

2,
26

0,
23

2
$ 

  
  

  
75

3,
41

0.
83

$ 
  

11
3,

01
2

$ 
  

  
  

 
1,

39
3,

81
0

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
38

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
48

2,
20

6,
13

0
$ 

  
44

1,
89

3,
05

0
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

2,
38

4,
11

9
$ 

  
  

  
79

4,
70

6.
35

$ 
  

11
9,

20
6

$ 
  

  
  

 
1,

47
0,

20
7

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
39

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
50

6,
31

6,
43

7
$ 

  
46

6,
00

3,
35

7
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

2,
51

4,
20

0
$ 

  
  

  
83

8,
06

6.
65

$ 
  

12
5,

71
0

$ 
  

  
  

 
1,

55
0,

42
3

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
40

40
,3

13
,0

80
$ 

  
53

1,
63

2,
25

8
$ 

  
49

1,
31

9,
17

8
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
63

87
5

2,
98

1,
38

6
$ 

  
  

  
99

3,
79

5.
40

$ 
  

14
9,

06
9

$ 
  

  
  

 
1,

83
8,

52
1

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 
T

o
ta

l
35

,9
51

,6
39

$ 
  

  
11

,9
83

,8
80

$ 
  

1,
79

7,
58

2
$ 

  
  

22
,1

70
,1

77
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
N

ot
es

:
(1

) 
 B

as
e 

Y
ea

r 
is

 T
ax

 Y
ea

r 
20

03
(2

) 
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
R

at
e 

fo
r 

TY
19

 t
o 

TY
40

 is
 9

5%
(3

) 
 T

he
 a

nn
ua

l a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

et
-a

si
de

 w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

of
 o

ne
-t

hi
rd

 o
f t

he
 a

ct
ua

l r
ev

en
ue

s 
or

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 r
ef

le
ct

ed
 in

 E
xh

ib
it 

9 
of

 t
he

 P
ar

t 
C

 P
la

n.



Exhibit 3 

T
a

x
 Y

e
a

r
B

a
se

 V
a

lu
e

s 
P

ro
je

ct
e

d
 V

a
lu

e

C
a

p
tu

re
d

 
A

p
p

ra
is

e
d

 V
a

lu
e

C
o

ll
e

ct
io

n
 

R
a

te
T

a
x

 R
a

te
In

cr
e

m
e

n
t

 R
e

ve
n

u
e

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 
C

it
y 

A
d

m
in

 
(5

%
)

N
e

t 
R

e
ve

n
u

e
(L

e
ss

 
T

ra
n

sf
e

rs
 a

n
d

 A
H

)

20
19

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
-

$
 

95
.0

0%
0.

56
79

2
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 

20
20

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

51
5,

29
7,

47
8

$ 
  

  
24

,5
37

,9
75

$ 
  

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

13
2,

38
8

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

44
,1

29
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

6,
61

9
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
81

,6
39

$
 

20
21

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

54
1,

06
2,

35
2

$ 
  

  
50

,3
02

,8
49

$ 
  

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

27
1,

39
6

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

90
,4

65
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

13
,5

70
$ 

  
  

  
  

16
7,

36
1

$
 

20
22

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

56
8,

11
5,

47
0

$ 
  

  
77

,3
55

,9
67

$ 
  

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

41
7,

35
4

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

13
9,

11
8

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

20
,8

68
$ 

  
  

  
  

25
7,

36
8

$
 

20
23

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

59
6,

52
1,

24
3

$ 
  

  
10

5,
76

1,
74

0
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

57
0,

61
0

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

19
0,

20
3

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

28
,5

30
$ 

  
  

  
  

35
1,

87
6

$
 

20
24

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

62
6,

34
7,

30
5

$ 
  

  
13

5,
58

7,
80

2
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

73
1,

52
9

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

24
3,

84
3

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

36
,5

76
$ 

  
  

  
  

45
1,

10
9

$
 

20
25

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

65
7,

66
4,

67
1

$ 
  

  
16

6,
90

5,
16

8
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

90
0,

49
3

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

30
0,

16
4

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

45
,0

25
$ 

  
  

  
  

55
5,

30
4

$
 

20
26

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

69
0,

54
7,

90
4

$ 
  

  
19

9,
78

8,
40

1
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
07

7,
90

6
$ 

  
  

  
35

9,
30

2
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
53

,8
95

$ 
  

  
  

  
66

4,
70

9
$

 

20
27

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

72
5,

07
5,

29
9

$ 
  

  
23

4,
31

5,
79

6
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
26

4,
19

0
$ 

  
  

  
42

1,
39

7
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
63

,2
09

$ 
  

  
  

  
77

9,
58

4
$

 

20
28

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

76
1,

32
9,

06
4

$ 
  

  
27

0,
56

9,
56

1
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
45

9,
78

8
$ 

  
  

  
48

6,
59

6
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
72

,9
89

$ 
  

  
  

  
90

0,
20

2
$

 

20
29

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

79
9,

39
5,

51
7

$ 
  

  
30

8,
63

6,
01

4
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
66

5,
16

5
$ 

  
  

  
55

5,
05

5
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
83

,2
58

$ 
  

  
  

  
1,

02
6,

85
2

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
30

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

83
9,

36
5,

29
3

$ 
  

  
34

8,
60

5,
79

0
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

1,
88

0,
81

2
$ 

  
  

  
62

6,
93

7
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
94

,0
41

$ 
  

  
  

  
1,

15
9,

83
4

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
31

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

88
1,

33
3,

55
8

$ 
  

  
39

0,
57

4,
05

5
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

2,
10

7,
24

1
$ 

  
  

  
70

2,
41

4
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
10

5,
36

2
$ 

  
  

  
 

1,
29

9,
46

5
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

20
32

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

92
5,

40
0,

23
6

$ 
  

  
43

4,
64

0,
73

3
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

2,
34

4,
99

1
$ 

  
  

  
78

1,
66

4
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
11

7,
25

0
$ 

  
  

  
 

1,
44

6,
07

8
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

20
33

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

97
1,

67
0,

24
8

$ 
  

  
48

0,
91

0,
74

5
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

2,
59

4,
62

9
$ 

  
  

  
86

4,
87

6
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
12

9,
73

1
$ 

  
  

  
 

1,
60

0,
02

1
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

20
34

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
02

0,
25

3,
76

0
$ 

 
52

9,
49

4,
25

7
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

2,
85

6,
74

9
$ 

  
  

  
95

2,
25

0
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
14

2,
83

7
$ 

  
  

  
 

1,
76

1,
66

2
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

20
35

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
07

1,
26

6,
44

8
$ 

 
58

0,
50

6,
94

5
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

3,
13

1,
97

4
$ 

  
  

  
1,

04
3,

99
1

$ 
  

  
  

15
6,

59
9

$ 
  

  
  

 
1,

93
1,

38
4

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
36

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
12

4,
82

9,
77

1
$ 

 
63

4,
07

0,
26

8
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

3,
42

0,
96

1
$ 

  
  

  
1,

14
0,

32
0

$ 
  

  
  

17
1,

04
8

$ 
  

  
  

 
2,

10
9,

59
3

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
37

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
18

1,
07

1,
25

9
$ 

 
69

0,
31

1,
75

6
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

3,
72

4,
39

8
$ 

  
  

  
1,

24
1,

46
6

$ 
  

  
  

18
6,

22
0

$ 
  

  
  

 
2,

29
6,

71
2

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
38

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
24

0,
12

4,
82

2
$ 

 
74

9,
36

5,
31

9
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

4,
04

3,
00

6
$ 

  
  

  
1,

34
7,

66
9

$ 
  

  
  

20
2,

15
0

$ 
  

  
  

 
2,

49
3,

18
7

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
39

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
30

2,
13

1,
06

3
$ 

 
81

1,
37

1,
56

0
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

4,
37

7,
54

4
$ 

  
  

  
1,

45
9,

18
1

$ 
  

  
  

21
8,

87
7

$ 
  

  
  

 
2,

69
9,

48
6

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
40

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
36

7,
23

7,
61

6
$ 

 
87

6,
47

8,
11

3
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
56

79
2

4,
72

8,
81

0
$ 

  
  

  
1,

57
6,

27
0

$ 
  

  
  

23
6,

44
0

$ 
  

  
  

 
2,

91
6,

09
9

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 
T

o
ta

l
43

,7
01

,9
34

$ 
  

  
14

,5
67

,3
11

$ 
  

  
 

2,
18

5,
09

7
$ 

  
  

26
,9

49
,5

26
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
N

ot
es

:
(1

) 
 B

as
e 

Y
ea

r 
is

 T
ax

 Y
ea

r 
20

18
(2

) 
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
R

at
e 

fo
r 

TY
19

 t
o 

TY
40

 u
se

s 
95

%
(3

) 
 T

he
 a

nn
ua

l a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

et
-a

si
de

 w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

of
 o

ne
-t

hi
rd

 o
f t

he
 a

ct
ua

l r
ev

en
ue

s 
or

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 r
ef

le
ct

ed
 in

 E
xh

ib
it 

9 
of

 t
he

 P
ar

t 
C

 P
la

n.



Exhibit 4 

T
a

x
 Y

e
a

r
B

a
se

 V
a

lu
e

s 
P

ro
je

ct
e

d
 V

a
lu

e

C
a

p
tu

re
d

 
A

p
p

ra
is

e
d

 V
a

lu
e

C
o

ll
e

ct
io

n
 

R
a

te
T

a
x

 R
a

te
In

cr
e

m
e

n
t

 R
e

ve
n

u
e

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 
C

it
y 

A
d

m
in

 
(5

%
)

N
e

t 
R

e
ve

n
u

e
(L

e
ss

 
T

ra
n

sf
e

rs
 a

n
d

 A
H

)

20
19

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
-

$
 

95
.0

0%
0.

40
71

3
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 

20
20

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

51
5,

29
7,

47
8

$ 
  

  
24

,5
37

,9
75

$ 
  

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

94
,9

06
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
31

,6
35

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 
4,

74
5

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

58
,5

26
$

 

20
21

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

54
1,

06
2,

35
2

$ 
  

  
50

,3
02

,8
49

$ 
  

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

19
4,

55
8

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

64
,8

53
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

9,
72

8
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
11

9,
97

7
$

 

20
22

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

56
8,

11
5,

47
0

$ 
  

  
77

,3
55

,9
67

$ 
  

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

29
9,

19
2

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

99
,7

31
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

14
,9

60
$ 

  
  

  
  

18
4,

50
2

$
 

20
23

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

59
6,

52
1,

24
3

$ 
  

  
10

5,
76

1,
74

0
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

40
9,

05
8

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

13
6,

35
3

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

20
,4

53
$ 

  
  

  
  

25
2,

25
3

$
 

20
24

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

62
6,

34
7,

30
5

$ 
  

  
13

5,
58

7,
80

2
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

52
4,

41
8

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

17
4,

80
6

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

26
,2

21
$ 

  
  

  
  

32
3,

39
1

$
 

20
25

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

65
7,

66
4,

67
1

$ 
  

  
16

6,
90

5,
16

8
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

64
5,

54
5

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

21
5,

18
2

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

32
,2

77
$ 

  
  

  
  

39
8,

08
6

$
 

20
26

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

69
0,

54
7,

90
4

$ 
  

  
19

9,
78

8,
40

1
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

77
2,

72
9

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

25
7,

57
6

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

38
,6

36
$ 

  
  

  
  

47
6,

51
6

$
 

20
27

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

72
5,

07
5,

29
9

$ 
  

  
23

4,
31

5,
79

6
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

90
6,

27
1

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

30
2,

09
0

$ 
  

  
  

  
 

45
,3

14
$ 

  
  

  
  

55
8,

86
7

$
 

20
28

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

76
1,

32
9,

06
4

$ 
  

  
27

0,
56

9,
56

1
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

1,
04

6,
49

1
$ 

  
  

  
34

8,
83

0
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
52

,3
25

$ 
  

  
  

  
64

5,
33

6
$

 

20
29

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

79
9,

39
5,

51
7

$ 
  

  
30

8,
63

6,
01

4
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

1,
19

3,
72

2
$ 

  
  

  
39

7,
90

7
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
59

,6
86

$ 
  

  
  

  
73

6,
12

9
$

 

20
30

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

83
9,

36
5,

29
3

$ 
  

  
34

8,
60

5,
79

0
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

1,
34

8,
31

5
$ 

  
  

  
44

9,
43

8
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
67

,4
16

$ 
  

  
  

  
83

1,
46

1
$

 

20
31

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

88
1,

33
3,

55
8

$ 
  

  
39

0,
57

4,
05

5
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

1,
51

0,
63

7
$ 

  
  

  
50

3,
54

6
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
75

,5
32

$ 
  

  
  

  
93

1,
55

9
$

 

20
32

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

92
5,

40
0,

23
6

$ 
  

  
43

4,
64

0,
73

3
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

1,
68

1,
07

5
$ 

  
  

  
56

0,
35

8
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
84

,0
54

$ 
  

  
  

  
1,

03
6,

66
3

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
33

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

97
1,

67
0,

24
8

$ 
  

  
48

0,
91

0,
74

5
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

1,
86

0,
03

5
$ 

  
  

  
62

0,
01

2
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
93

,0
02

$ 
  

  
  

  
1,

14
7,

02
2

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
34

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
02

0,
25

3,
76

0
$ 

 
52

9,
49

4,
25

7
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

2,
04

7,
94

3
$ 

  
  

  
68

2,
64

8
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
10

2,
39

7
$ 

  
  

  
 

1,
26

2,
89

8
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

20
35

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
07

1,
26

6,
44

8
$ 

 
58

0,
50

6,
94

5
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

2,
24

5,
24

7
$ 

  
  

  
74

8,
41

6
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
11

2,
26

2
$ 

  
  

  
 

1,
38

4,
56

9
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

20
36

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
12

4,
82

9,
77

1
$ 

 
63

4,
07

0,
26

8
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

2,
45

2,
41

6
$ 

  
  

  
81

7,
47

2
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
12

2,
62

1
$ 

  
  

  
 

1,
51

2,
32

3
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

20
37

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
18

1,
07

1,
25

9
$ 

 
69

0,
31

1,
75

6
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

2,
66

9,
94

3
$ 

  
  

  
88

9,
98

1
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
13

3,
49

7
$ 

  
  

  
 

1,
64

6,
46

5
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

20
38

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
24

0,
12

4,
82

2
$ 

 
74

9,
36

5,
31

9
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

2,
89

8,
34

6
$ 

  
  

  
96

6,
11

5
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
14

4,
91

7
$ 

  
  

  
 

1,
78

7,
31

4
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
 

20
39

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
30

2,
13

1,
06

3
$ 

 
81

1,
37

1,
56

0
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

3,
13

8,
17

0
$ 

  
  

  
1,

04
6,

05
7

$ 
  

  
  

15
6,

90
9

$ 
  

  
  

 
1,

93
5,

20
5

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 

20
40

49
0,

75
9,

50
3

$ 
  

  
  

1,
36

7,
23

7,
61

6
$ 

 
87

6,
47

8,
11

3
$ 

  
  

 
95

.0
0%

0.
40

71
3

3,
38

9,
98

5
$ 

  
  

  
1,

12
9,

99
5

$ 
  

  
  

16
9,

49
9

$ 
  

  
  

 
2,

09
0,

49
1

$ 
  

  
  

  
  

 
T

o
ta

l
31

,3
29

,0
05

$ 
  

  
10

,4
43

,0
02

$ 
  

  
 

1,
56

6,
45

0
$ 

  
  

19
,3

19
,5

53
$ 

  
  

  
  

 
N

ot
es

:
(1

) 
 B

as
e 

Y
ea

r 
is

 T
ax

 Y
ea

r 
20

18
(2

) 
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
R

at
e 

fo
r 

TY
19

 t
o 

TY
40

 u
se

s 
95

%
(3

) 
 T

he
 a

nn
ua

l a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

et
-a

si
de

 w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

of
 o

ne
-t

hi
rd

 o
f t

he
 a

ct
ua

l r
ev

en
ue

s 
or

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 r
ef

le
ct

ed
 in

 E
xh

ib
it 

9 
of

 t
he

 P
ar

t 
C

 P
la

n.


	Hardy Financial Statements as of 11.11.2019.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Profit Loss Budget vs. Actual
	Profit Loss Detail
	Unpaid Bills Detail
	Unpaid Invoices
	Bentley, Bratcher & Associates, P.C.
	13030-001-029

	Bracewell
	21862275
	21862276
	21866005

	Equi-Tax Inc.
	54504
	54618

	TIFWorks, LLC
	12



	21_ Third Amended Project Plan  1101-2019V2.pdf
	21_Third Amended Project Plan Text 0926-2019.pdf
	Introduction:
	Goal l:  Create pedestrian-friendly, safe environments through the reconstruction of streets and sidewalks, with ample lighting and streetscape amenities.
	Streetscape enhancements are required to create an environment to stimulate investment in retail, residential, and commercial developments.  Enhanced streetscape components include sidewalks, lighting, signage, street trees, landscaping, benches, and ...
	Goal 2: Redevelopment and upgrades to public green space, parks, and other appropriate recreational facilities.
	Public infrastructure, regional trail systems and other enhancements to area parks and other public open green space will attract and support redevelopment and improve the quality of life of area neighborhoods and visitors.
	Goal 3:  Expand pedestrian-attractive retail developments.
	Providing base-level retail functionality is essential to the continued expansion of residential projects in the area through the implementation of enhanced pedestrian amenities with an emphasis on parking, lighting, street trees, landscaping, wide si...
	Goal 4: Metropolitan Transit Authority (METRO) Initiatives and complementing the revitalization activities proposed to occur along the METRO North Corridor Alignment.
	METRO funding of public transit systems can be complemented by Zone activities including the funding of streetscape upgrades, right-of-way acquisition, and provisions for parking to serve retail needs.  The METRO Solutions North Corridor alignment lo...
	Goal 5:  Cultural and Public Facilities; Affordable Housing.
	Increasing public and cultural facilities and affordable housing for current residents as well as for the Downtown workforce is an important public policy goal of the Part C Plan.  Zone funds will be leveraged with private, public, and non-profit deve...
	Goal 6:  Infrastructure Improvements.
	Public streets and public utility systems are needed to create an environment that will stimulate private investment in retail, residential, multi-family, and commercial developments.  Construction of key streets and utility systems will enhance the l...


	21_Third Amended Project Plan Text 0926-2019 V2.pdf
	Introduction:
	Goal l:  Create pedestrian-friendly, safe environments through the reconstruction of streets and sidewalks, with ample lighting and streetscape amenities.
	Streetscape enhancements are required to create an environment to stimulate investment in retail, residential, and commercial developments.  Enhanced streetscape components include sidewalks, lighting, signage, street trees, landscaping, benches, and ...
	Goal 2: Redevelopment and upgrades to public green space, parks, and other appropriate recreational facilities.
	Public infrastructure, regional trail systems and other enhancements to area parks and other public open green space will attract and support redevelopment and improve the quality of life of area neighborhoods and visitors.
	Goal 3:  Expand pedestrian-attractive retail developments.
	Providing base-level retail functionality is essential to the continued expansion of residential projects in the area through the implementation of enhanced pedestrian amenities with an emphasis on parking, lighting, street trees, landscaping, wide si...
	Goal 4: Metropolitan Transit Authority (METRO) Initiatives and complementing the revitalization activities proposed to occur along the METRO North Corridor Alignment.
	METRO funding of public transit systems can be complemented by Zone activities including the funding of streetscape upgrades, right-of-way acquisition, and provisions for parking to serve retail needs.  The METRO Solutions North Corridor alignment lo...
	Goal 5:  Cultural and Public Facilities; Affordable Housing.
	Increasing public and cultural facilities and affordable housing for current residents as well as for the Downtown workforce is an important public policy goal of the Part C Plan.  Zone funds will be leveraged with private, public, and non-profit deve...
	Goal 6:  Infrastructure Improvements.
	Public streets and public utility systems are needed to create an environment that will stimulate private investment in retail, residential, multi-family, and commercial developments.  Construction of key streets and utility systems will enhance the l...


	21_Third Amended Project Plan Text 1101-2019 V2.pdf
	Introduction:
	Goal l:  Create pedestrian-friendly, safe environments through the reconstruction of streets and sidewalks, with ample lighting and streetscape amenities.
	Streetscape enhancements are required to create an environment to stimulate investment in retail, residential, and commercial developments.  Enhanced streetscape components include sidewalks, lighting, signage, street trees, landscaping, benches, and ...
	Goal 2: Redevelopment and upgrades to public green space, parks, and other appropriate recreational facilities.
	Public infrastructure, regional trail systems and other enhancements to area parks and other public open green space will attract and support redevelopment and improve the quality of life of area neighborhoods and visitors.
	Goal 3:  Expand pedestrian-attractive retail developments.
	Providing base-level retail functionality is essential to the continued expansion of residential projects in the area through the implementation of enhanced pedestrian amenities with an emphasis on parking, lighting, street trees, landscaping, wide si...
	Goal 4: Metropolitan Transit Authority (METRO) Initiatives and complementing the revitalization activities proposed to occur along the METRO North Corridor Alignment.
	METRO funding of public transit systems can be complemented by Zone activities including the funding of streetscape upgrades, right-of-way acquisition, and provisions for parking to serve retail needs.  The METRO Solutions North Corridor alignment lo...
	Goal 5:  Cultural and Public Facilities; Affordable Housing.
	Increasing public and cultural facilities and affordable housing for current residents as well as for the Downtown workforce is an important public policy goal of the Part C Plan.  Zone funds will be leveraged with private, public, and non-profit deve...
	Goal 6:  Infrastructure Improvements.
	Public streets and public utility systems are needed to create an environment that will stimulate private investment in retail, residential, multi-family, and commercial developments.  Construction of key streets and utility systems will enhance the l...


	21_Third Amended Project Plan Text 1101-2019 V2.pdf
	Introduction:
	Goal l:  Create pedestrian-friendly, safe environments through the reconstruction of streets and sidewalks, with ample lighting and streetscape amenities.
	Streetscape enhancements are required to create an environment to stimulate investment in retail, residential, and commercial developments.  Enhanced streetscape components include sidewalks, lighting, signage, street trees, landscaping, benches, and ...
	Goal 2: Redevelopment and upgrades to public green space, parks, and other appropriate recreational facilities.
	Public infrastructure, regional trail systems and other enhancements to area parks and other public open green space will attract and support redevelopment and improve the quality of life of area neighborhoods and visitors.
	Goal 3:  Expand pedestrian-attractive retail developments.
	Providing base-level retail functionality is essential to the continued expansion of residential projects in the area through the implementation of enhanced pedestrian amenities with an emphasis on parking, lighting, street trees, landscaping, wide si...
	Goal 4: Metropolitan Transit Authority (METRO) Initiatives and complementing the revitalization activities proposed to occur along the METRO North Corridor Alignment.
	METRO funding of public transit systems can be complemented by Zone activities including the funding of streetscape upgrades, right-of-way acquisition, and provisions for parking to serve retail needs.  The METRO Solutions North Corridor alignment lo...
	Goal 5:  Cultural and Public Facilities; Affordable Housing.
	Increasing public and cultural facilities and affordable housing for current residents as well as for the Downtown workforce is an important public policy goal of the Part C Plan.  Zone funds will be leveraged with private, public, and non-profit deve...
	Goal 6:  Infrastructure Improvements.
	Public streets and public utility systems are needed to create an environment that will stimulate private investment in retail, residential, multi-family, and commercial developments.  Construction of key streets and utility systems will enhance the l...



	DM-#6071710-v2-MIN_9-23-19_Hardy_RA.pdf
	CONVENE IN EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 551.087, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE

	DM-#6071887-v1-MIN_9-23-19_Zone_TIRZ21.pdf
	CONVENE IN EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 551.087, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE

	DM-#6071850-v1-Resolution_Appointing_Investment_Officer_Hardy_Ra_TIRZ21.pdf
	RESOLUTION APPOINTING INVESTMENT OFFICER FOR HARDY/NEAR NORTHSIDE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
	Section 1. The Authority hereby appoints Melissa Morton to serve as Investment Officer for the Authority.
	Section 2. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and upon its adoption.




